
 

 

2 March 2018 
 
 OUR REF: 2018/14 

 
Chair 
Senate Estimates Economics Legislation Committee  
PO Box 6100 
Parliament House 
Canberra ACT 2600 
 
BY EMAIL: economics.sen@aph.gov.au 
 
Dear Senator Hume, 
 
ACNC Appearance before Committee on Wednesday 28 February 2018 
 
At my appearance before your Committee on Wednesday 28 February 2018, Senator 
Jenny McAllister referred to comments I made while appearing before the Parliamentary 
Joint Committee on Intelligence and Security (PJCIS) on Friday 16 February 2018.  My 
appearance before this Committee was in relation to the Committee’s review of the 
Foreign Influence Transparency Scheme Bill 2017 (FITS Bill). 
 
Senator McAllister made reference to .an answer I provided to a question by Mr Julian 
Leeser.  The below is the exerpt from the transcript of my appearance before the 
Parliamentary Joint Committee with this question and answer.   
 

 
 
At face value it would appear that I was stating that the ACNC does not ask for the source 
of income that charities receive.  However, when taken in context of the entire discussion 
leading up to this point, a discussion to which Senator McAllister was part, it is clear that 
Mr Leeser and I were discussing whether the ACNC collects information on the 
geographical source of donations.  Attachment A is a copy of the Hansard transcript of my 
appearance before the PJCIS and below is a summary of the discussion that lead to the 
above excerpt. 



 

 

• After an opening statement from myself, the Chair, Mr Andrew Hastie, asked a 
series of questions in relation to charities which have potential connections to 
foreign entities, seeking an estimate of the number of charities which could 
potentially be affected by the FITS Bill. 

• Mr Hastie and I discussed examples of the types of charities which would have 
international linkages, and Mr Hastie mentioned the Barnabas Fund. 

• I mentioned that the ACNC was most concerned with the definition of what it is to 
be influenced by a foreign entity. 

• Senator McAllister then had a series of questions, asking if there could be a 
simultaneous obligation for a charity and an individual to have to register activities 
on behalf of a foreign principal. 

• Mr Leeser then began his questions reflecting on the advice provided by Peter 
Jennings, that if charities were excluded from the Foreign Influence Transparency 
Scheme, then foreign principals would target Australian charities and seek to use 
them to influence Australian politics. 

• This led into a discussion on how many charities have had their registration 
revoked for not pursing their charitable purpose.   

• After this conversation came Mr Leeser’s question in the excerpt on page 1. 
 
From the above summary, it can be demonstrated that when I responded to Mr Leeser, I 
was responding in relation to whether the ACNC asks, receives, publishes or audits the 
geographical source of income that charities receive.   
 
In light of Senator McAllister’s follow up questions at Senate Estimates on Wednesday 28 
February, it would seem that the Senator did not understand that the source being 
considered was geographical.  Senator McAllister failed to provide to your committee that 
context.  I have therefore provided the following information to fully clarify the situation for 
Senator McAllister, your committee, and the records.   
 
The ACNC does not require charities to report the geographical source of income to the 
ACNC.  However, the ACNC does require financial information from charities.  In fact, the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 (Cth) (the ACNC Act) 
clearly sets out (in Subdivision 60-C) that medium and large charities must provide the 
ACNC with annual financial statements.  In addition to this, the ACNC also asks charities 
to provide annual aggregated sources of income in the Annual Information Statement.  In 
the 2017 AIS annual income was categorized under the following headings: 

• Revenue from government (including grants) 

• Donations and bequests 

• Revenue from providing goods or services 

• Revenue from investments 

• Other revenue/receipts 

• Other income if applicable 
 
As can be seen from the above, we do not ask charities for a breakdown of finances by 
geographical source. 
 
I appreciate this opportunity to clarify for Senator McAllister the distinction between 
sources of income provided to charities, relating specifically to foreign donations, and the 



 

 

ACNC’s power to collect annual financial statements.  I trust this is of use to the Senator 
in her deliberations, and to Hansard for its records.   
 
Yours sincerely 

 
The Hon Dr Gary Johns 
Commissioner 
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